ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE LABOR AND COMMERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 20, 2003
1:33 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Con Bunde, Chair

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Vice Chair
Senator Gary Stevens

Senat or Bettye Davis

Senator Hollis French

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 64
"An Act requiring certain consumer reporting agencies to provide
individuals with certain information w thout charge."”

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS ACTI ON
SB 64 - No previous action to consider.
W TNESS REG STER

M. Steven O eary, Executive Director

Al aska Public Information G oup (AKPIRG
PO Box 101093

Anchor age AK 99510

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 64.

M. Ed Sniffen

Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comrent ed on SB 64.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-5, SIDE A

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -1- February 20, 2003



CHAIR CON BUNDE called the Senate Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:33 p.m Present were Senators
Ral ph Seekins, Gary Stevens, Bettye Davis, Hollis French and
Chair Con Bunde.

SB  64- CREDI T | NFORVATI ON

CHAI R CON BUNDE announced SB 64 to be up for consideration.

SENATOR HOLLI'S FRENCH, sponsor of SB 64, said this is consuner
protection legislation. It is designed to allow Al askans annua
access to his or her consuner report from any consuner reporting
agency that does business in the state. There are only three
nati onw de consuner reporting agencies that conpete with each
ot her. Many people have no experience getting consumer reports
and, for sone, the $9 cost is an issue. Six or seven states have
enacted simlar legislation. He said there is no hidden agenda
behind SB 64 and it is easy to understand.

SENATOR FRENCH referred to an article from CNN about a recent
theft of credit card nunmbers from a nail order catal ogue
conpany. It said that as many as 8 mllion account nunbers were
accessed. At |east one conpany cancelled 8,000 credit cards in
response to the theft.

CHAI R BUNDE asked how many fol ks he thought woul d take advant age
of this if it was available to them

SENATOR FRENCH replied that currently 1 in 10 people access
their credit reports nationwi de. He noted, "I would be surprised
if this would double the nunber of folks who were to access
their credit reports..."

CHAI R BUNDE asked what financial inpact this l|egislation would
have on the credit card conpani es.

SENATOR FRENCH answered that no one knows, but he thought it
m ght actually be beneficial.

CHAI R BUNDE noted that any cost for the credit check would be
passed on to the consuner. He asked Senator French if he had
considered the inpact this bill mght have on the $9 charge if
this service were free.

SENATOR FRENCH said that is a good question that he has referred
to credit conpanies, but they hadn't responded so far. He

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 2- February 20, 2003



stressed that this is information that ultimately belongs to the
consurer.

SENATOR BETTYE DAVIS renmarked that this mght help consuners
because now they have to pay a fee to get a credit report
t hrough credit card conpani es.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS asked if the three conmpanies provide this
information to the consuner in hard copy only or whether it is
avai |l abl e over the Internet.

SENATOR FRENCH replied that he went on the Internet two days ago
and paid $30 to have all three reporting agencies give him his
credit report in a single docunent. He got a password and was
able to access the report one tine. He printed it out and has a

copy.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS renmarked that fraud mght be even nore
pervasive if the reports were avail able on the Internet.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked if information about a particular
consuner's financial transactions is considered to be that
person’s property.

SENATOR FRENCH replied that at sone level it belongs to the
consuner at | east once because it is the consuner's transaction.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked if a consuner would benefit from having
recorded transactions in a credit collecting and reporting
agency and if they weren't selling that information by allow ng
it to be collected.

SENATOR FRENCH replied that he didn't dispute the value of the
service credit reporting conpani es provi de, but t he
countervailing value is openness, access and accuracy.

SENATOR SEEKINS said that based on his own experience, if he
knows a person's social security nunber, he can get that
person’s credit history. He wanted to know from the credit card
conpanies their estimate of the added cost of a free report that
woul d be spread out anong existing custoners. He asked how nany
people in the room have checked to see if soneone had stolen
their identity. [Two people indicated they had.]

SENATOR FRENCH responded that he had at |east one inquiry froma

consuner protection group in Washington D.C. asking how this
bill was proceeding and he hadn't notified them He thought

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 3- February 20, 2003



there nmust be a way to nonitor bills that are filed and that the
credit reporting agencies have not responded because they have
not heard about the bill yet, not because they do not care.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked which states currently have simlar
| egi sl ati on and whether they have experiences to rel ate.

1: 50 p. m
SENATOR FRENCH replied he is aware that Colorado, GCeorgia,

Maryl and, Massachusetts, New Jersey and Vernont have simlar
| egi sl ati on.

CHAIR BUNDE said it would be interesting to see if the nunber of

inquiries increased in those states and whether the cost of
reports beyond the free one increased.

MR STEVE CLEARY, Executive Director of the Alaska Public

I nterest Research Group, said this bill benefits both consuners
and conpanies because fraud costs everybody noney. He
mai ntained, "It's not just people who have their identity
stolen...but it's also the credit bureaus and credit agencies
that have to deal wth identity theft...." He noted that the
access provided by this bill does not put an undue burden on

busi nesses.

He noted that this bill is directed toward identity theft, but
credit scores are often used to deny folks <credit or to
di scrimnate against them in other venues such as insurance and
they need to be | ooked at, as well, in other |egislation.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS asked if this bill would actually lead to
| ess fraud or whether it would sinply identify fraud after it
has occurred.

MR. CLEARY replied he hopes it will lead to | ess fraud, although
people will pick up on problens after the fact. It recognizes
the increasing threat of identity theft that people should be
awar e of.

SENATOR SEEKI NS asked M. Cleary why he would say that a record
of his transactions belongs to him

MR. CLEARY replied that a person's credit history blends into
their future credit and it can be wused as a device that
determnes a lot of future actions. If people are going to nake
deci sions based on a person’s transactions, that person should

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -4- February 20, 2003



have access to that same information for full disclosure. He
added this bill could protect a consumer from credit errors,
which are very conmon. Sonetines just a msspelling of a nane
can lead to credit conplications.

SENATOR SEEKI NS asked how people woul d becone aware of this |aw
if it passed.

MR. CLEARY replied people who had been formally denied credit
through a credit card application process could find out on
their letter of denial. He thought word of nouth mght also help
or it could be printed on the Permanent Fund application.

SENATOR SEEKINS said he would not want the consuner protection
section of the Attorney General's office to have to put out a
busi ness advisory for notification.

MR. ED SNI FFEN, Departnent of Law, said the departnent had to do
t hat once.

CHAIR BUNDE asked M. Ceary if he was aware of anyone who was
not getting a credit report because of the cost.

MR. CLEARY replied that he hadn't heard that. There are
provi sions for consuners who are receiving welfare or
unenpl oynment to receive free credit reports, but this bill |ends
itself to routine naintenance through nore awareness. He noted,
"Nine dollars isn't all that nuch, but this bill wuld save
i ndustry noney as well, so I think that cost is well spent.”

CHAIR BUNDE thanked him for his testinony and said he was
| ooking forward to getting nore information on this issue and
held SB 64 in commttee.

CHAI R BUNDE adj ourned the neeting at 2:05 p. m

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 5- February 20, 2003



